HA-1467 Between 1880 & 1887

John Keith House

30 E. Pennsylvania Avenue
Bel Air

private

This three bay gable-roofed house is typical of the simple homes
built by artisans in the 19th century. Originally it was adorned only
by the scroll porch brackets. It was the home and shop of John Keith,
a Bel Air bootmaker. It has recently been remodeled and now houses
Todd Holden's Photographic Studio.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This two-story aluminum-sided L-shaped house with a gable roof is at
30 East Pennsylvania Avenue in the Town of Bel Air, Harford County,
Maryland. Originally a single pile house with a front porch, the house
has been expanded at least twice, first with the addition of a two-story
ell to the north containing a kitchen downstairs and a room and a bath
upstairs. This addition had a shed porch on the east elevation. This
porch has been enclosed. The gable roof of the ell shows that the bay
to the west was added to the back later. It contains one room down
and a sunporch up. :

0l1d pictures show the former porch to be a wide Victorian wveranda
with posts and decorative brackets. The entry is in the center of
the three bays. The windows in the main block are 6/6 double hung
sash flanked by louvered shutters on the front (south) and east. The
windows in the ell, with the exception of those in the sunporch, are
4/4 double hung sash. The sunporch windows are modern aluminum sliding
panels. The western half of the front porch has been enclosed and
shows 6/6 double hung windows, too, two on the west side and four on
the south side. The rest of the porch, tiled floor, brick wall and
wrought iron posts, is also recent. The Holdens are planning to remove
most of the brick and enclose the east half of the porch in glass to
provide a showcase for their photography. An inside end chimney with a
corbelled cap rises in the eastern gable end.

The interior is more or less a double pile now with a center hall
plan. The open string single run staircase has the fat turned newel
one finds in so many Bel Air buildings. Two turned balusters stand
on each step. The first room to the west was the parlor. It was
extended by the enclosure of half the porch. The room to the east was
originally dining room and kitchen; the paneling covers the stovepipe
hole in the east end. The room behind the parlor is now Mr. Holden's
office. The kitchen is behind the dining room, which is used as a
salesroom. Upstairs there are three bedrooms, the sunporch and, at the
north end of the hall, a bathroom with a claw-footed tub and tongue
and groove paneling. Along the southeast side of the hall is an
enclosed staircase to the attic. All the woodwork in the house is
quite plain.

Mr. Holden uses the basement for his darkroom.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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This house, recently rehabilitated from a degenerating rooming house
to a photographic studio, is an excellent example of the kind of simple
house built by a skilled workman in the 1880's. 1In its original shape
without the ell it was a single pile with center hall plan (two rooms
down and two rooms up). While the title shows that the property had been
leased and then sold to Mary Anderson (Keith) by 1865, the 1878 map shows
no building on the lot. The house could have been built any time from
1840 or so on. The first mention of it in the documents occurs in the
Harford Democrat of August 5, 1887, which announces that John Keith had
moved his boot shop from Office Street (where he had moved the previous
year) to his residence on Hickory opposite the 0l1d Presbyterian Church.
The house may have been built earlier, however, because Keith lost his

ouse on Bond Street late in 1880 when it was sold for the Phoenix
suilding Association, probably on a defaulted mortgage. Probably this
house was built as soon as he recovered financially. The property stayed
in the Keith family until 1906 when it was sold to C. Robie Grafton for
$2,405.00 after Mrs. Keith's death (117/335). Grafton probably rented it
and probably added the ell, since he got $4000.00 for it six years later
when he sold it to James A. Wheeler (1912, 137/170). The Wheelers lived
there for nearly thirty years. After Mrs. Wheeler's death, Wheeler sold
-it to the Chinaris family in 1942 (275/131). It remained in that family
for another thirty years, finally falling to be a cheap rooming house.

In 1974 Todd Holden and his wife Ann bought it and rehabilitated it
-(949/867).

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

This property occupies parcel #858 in the Town of Bel Air,
74' x 110' irregular

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNT!ES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY —
EE1FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE
M. Larew, Architectural Historian 30 April 1979
ORGANIZATION DATE
Town of Bel Air 838-8700
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
39 Hickory
CITY OR TOWN STATE
Bel Air Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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TITLE: HOLDEN STUDIOS
30 E. Pennsylvania

949/867 8 May 1974
George A. Chinaris & Helen C. Stone
(formerly Helen George Chinaris)
to
Stockton Todd Holden and Ann, wife
part of the land in the estate of George
Chinaris (will 1963, 27/81)

275/131 1 October 1942
James A. Wheeler, widower
to
George Chinaris and Edith, wife

137/170 8 May 1912
C. Robie Grafton and Annie May, wife
to
James A. Wheeler and Lillian, wife
$4000

117/335 26 April 1906
Henry W. Archer, Trustee, et al
to
C. Robie Grafton and Annie May, wife
$2405

Mary Keith died in (will 13/48) leaving

the property to be sold. After a series of
deaths the property was finally sold for the
benefit of the heirs.

16/264 31 October 1865
Charles Lee and Elizabeth, wife, and
William Anderson

to

Mary Anderson (Keith)
$800
Anderson owned the lease (1858, 10/194) from
Lee to Maurice O'Rourk - rent $30 per annum.
It had passed from O'Rourk to Michael Black
(1859, 11/169) and from Black to Anderson
(12/231).
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